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GREATER NEW ORLEANS EXPRESSWAY COMMISSION 
P.O. BOX 7656, METAIRIE LOUISIANA 70010 

TELEPHONE 504-835-3118 * FAX 504-835-2518 
www.thecauseway.us 

April 30, 2020 

To Members of the Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 

The Annual Financial Report of the Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission for the fiscal year ended October 31, 
2019 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the 
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Commission's management. To the best of our knowledge and belief, 
the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial 
position and results of operations of the Commission. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding 
of the Commission's financial activities have been included. 

The Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections: inhroductory, financial, and other supplemental information. 
The introductory section includes this transmittal letter. The financial section has been prepared in accordance with the 
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 34. This section includes the following: Report of Independent 
Auditor; Management's Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information); Basic Financial Statements; and 
Notes to Financial Statements. The other supplemental information section includes schedules required by the Bond 
Indenture Agreements. 

PROFILE 

The Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission was established in 1954 as the governing body with jurisdiction over 
the Expressway. The Commission is a special-purpose government engaged in business t}q)e activities. By legislative 
enactment, after all bonds, principal and interest, are fully paid, the Expressway becomes the property of the State of 
Louisiana and thereafter will be operated and maintained by the Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development 
as a toll-free (non-business t)^e) facility and as part of the state highway system. 

The Commission provides for the policing of the Expressway, the operation and maintenance of the Expressway and the 
associated administrative services. By legislative mandate in 1986, the Commission provides for the policing of the Huey 
P. Long Bridge. 

SAFETY 

A major priority of the Commission is the safety of the motoring public crossing the Expressway. The Expressway is 
experiencing an excellent safety record. The Commission has implemented a public information system that includes the 
internet, radio announcements, brochures, call boxes, and variable message signs. These systems help to inform and educate 
the public about safety on the Expressway. A traffic monitoring program, consisting of security cameras and radar system, 
is fully operational. The security camera system consists of cameras at strategic locations throughout the twenty-four-mile 
Expressway, beneath the bridge spans, the toll plaza, and the approach roads. The Expressway has its own police department 
and motorists assistance patrol, which operate the following safety programs: motorists assist vehicles, wreckers, rescue 
trucks, and the rolling convoy for fog abatement. 



FINANCIAL INFORMATION, MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL 

A detailed understanding of the financial position and operating results of the Commission is provided in the report. 
Presented below is a brief description of financial information, management of financial resources and obligations, and 
control techniques applicable to financial resources, obligations, and information. 

Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial 
statements. The accrual basis of accounting is used, which means revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are 
recognized when incurred. 

Accounting Systems and Budgetary Control 

In developing and evaluating the Commission's accounting control system, consideration is given to the adequacy of internal 
accounting controls. Accounting control con^rises the plan of organization and the procedures and records that are 
concerned with the safeguarding of assets and the reliability of financial records and consequently are designed to provide 
reasonable assurance that: 

• Transactions are executed in accordance with management's general or specific authorization. 

• Transactions are reported as necessary (a) to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America or any other criteria, such as finance-
related legal and contractual compliance requirements applicable to such statements, and (b) to maintain 
accountability for assets. 

• Access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management's authorization. 

• The recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate 
action is taken with respect to any difference. 

The definition of accounting control comprehends reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the objectives expressed in 
it will be accomplished by the system. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of internal conhol 
should not exceed the benefits. The benefits consist of reductions in the risk of failing to achieve the objectives implicit in 
the definition of accounting control. 

All internal control evaluations occur within this framework. We believe the Commission's accounting controls adequately 
safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. The Commission has 
formally established budgetary accounting controls for its operating hmds. Budgetary conhrol is maintained by category 
within the dq)artments for each accomit group. 

Account Description 

As required by the Bond Indenture Agreement, the accounts of the Commission are organized on die basis of funds and 
accounts, each of which is considered a separate accounting activity for recording receipts and disbursements. Those 
accounts (General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital Projects, and Internal Service) are shown on Schedule 1 of this 
report. Those account activities are summarized into the sole enterprise fund, which is used to account for ongoing 
organizations and activities that are similar to those found in the private sector. 



The costs of providing the services to the general public are recovered, in whole or in part, through user charges. The 
Commission's operations comprise the operation of the Expressway Bridge in which tolls are charged. Results of operations 
for the year ended October 31, 2019 can be found in the Management's Discussion & Analysis. 

The Commission's operations include electronic equipment at the toll plaza designed to classify vehicles, calculate the toll 
assessed and record those events. To facilitate the traffic flow, electronic toll devices read toll tags. Customers may acquire 
toll tags at the Commission operated toll tag stores on both north and south shores of the Expressway. 

For the year ended October 31, 2019, a breakdown of the revenues is as follows: 

Dedicated for Major Repairs & Capital Improvements $ 10,127,751 
Undedicated to be Used for General Operations 13,774,497 

$ 23.902.248 
Long-term Debt 

The Commission had the following principal outstanding long-term debt at October 31, 2019: 

Revenue Bonds: 

Refunding, Series 2013 $ 17,835,000 
Refunding, Series 2014 17,415,000 
Revenue Bonds Series 2017 87,010,000 

$122.260.000 

On September 30, 2013, the Commission issued $25,545,000 of Revenue Bonds, Series 2013. The proceeds of this issue 
were used to refund a portion of the Commission's outstanding Series 2003 Bonds and pay costs of issuance of the Series 
2013 Bonds including the cost of the bond insurance policy. 

On June 19, 2014, the Commission issued $17,540,000 of Revenue Bonds, Series 2014. The proceeds of this issue were 
used to refund the final portion of the Commission's outstanding Series 2003 Bonds and pay cost of issuance of the Series 
2014 Bonds including the cost of the bond insurance policy. 

On August 22, 2017, the Commission issued $87,495,000 of Revenue Bonds, Series 2017. The proceeds of this issue were 
used for safety bays, bridge railing improvements and cost of issuance of the Series 2017 Bonds including the cost of die 
bond insiurance policy. 

CASH MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

Cash receipts are deposited daily into the Commission's bank accounts. These funds are automatically transferred by the 
Trustee into the appropriate Trust Fund accounts and are invested in accordance with the provisions of the Bond Indenture. 
All bank and investment accounts are reconciled on a monthly basis. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to general liability, automotive liability, and property insurance 
contracts. An Internal Service Account (a risk management aceount) is used to account for and finance its uninsured risks 
of loss. Under this program, the risk management account provides coverage for the general and automotive liability up to 
the $500,000 deductible limits for each covered loss. The Commission purchased commercial insurance for elaims in excess 
of coverage provided by the Internal Service Accoimt. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage for the 
fiseal year. Additional information on die Commission's risk management activity can be found in the notes to the financial 
statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT 

The financial records, books of account, and transactions of the Commission for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2019 
have been audited by Pinell & Martinez, LLC, and the opinion is included in the Finance Section of this report. 

The financial statements are the responsibility of the Commission. The responsibility of the independent auditor is to 
express an opinion on the Commission's financial statements based on the audit. An audit is conducted in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that the audit be planned 
and performed in a manner to obtain a reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. 

Respectfully submitted. 

PhCHpoW 
Melissa M. Phillpott 
Director of Finance 



M INELL & ..ViARTINEZ LLC 

Certified Public Accountants 

308 Soutn Tyler Street, Sutte 2 
Covington, Louisiana 70433 

info@plnrnarcpa.com 
pinmarcpa.com 

985-327-7311 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Commissioners 
Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Metairie, Louisiana 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Greater New 
Orleans Expressway Commission, a component unit of the State of Louisiana, as of and for the year 
ended October 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission's basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the Greater New 
Orleans Expressway Commission's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission's internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

Member of The Scuiiefy 

of Louisiana CP4s 

Meriiiber of The American Institute of 

Ceitfied Public Accountants 

Member of The At^sociation 

Fraud Exarrineis 



To the Board of Commissioners 
Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Metairie. Louisiana 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities of Greater New Orleans Expressway 
Commission, as of October 31,2019, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

Emphasis of a Matter 

The Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission corrected a prior period misstatement. Tliis has 
resulted in a restatement of beginning restricted net position as discussed in Note 13. Our opinion is not 
modified witli respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis at pages 8 through 13, the schedule of changes in total OPEB liabilit)^ at page 38, 
the schedule of employer's proportionate share of net pension iiability(asset) at page 39; and schedule of 
employer's pension contributions at page 40 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or pro\ide any assurance. 

Supplementary and Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements of tlie Greater 
New Orleans Expressway Commission. The accompanying schedule of compensation paid to board of 
commissioners at page 42; schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to general manager at 
page 43; schedule of receipts and disbursements at page 44; schedule of investments at page 45; schedule 
of revenue from tolls at page 47; schedule of northshore tmffic — number of crossings at page 48; and 
schedule of insurance at page 49 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required 
part of the financial statements. 



To the Board of Commissioners 
Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Metairie, Louisiana 

The schedule of compensation paid to board of commissioners; schedule of compensation, benefits, and 
other payments to general manager; schedule of receipts and disbursements; schedule of investments; and 
schedule of revenue from tolls is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying schedules are fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The schedule of northshore traffic — number of crossings and schedule of insurance have not been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 30, 2020, 
on our consideration of the Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission's internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission's internal control over financial reporting and eompliance. 

/fi 

Covington, Louisiana 
April 30, 2020 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Introduction 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of the Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission's (the 
"Commission") financial performance presents a narrative overview and analysis of the Commission's 
financial activities for the year ended October 31, 2019. This document focuses on the current year's 
activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts in comparison with the prior year's information. 
Please read this document in conjunction with the additional information contained in the transmittal 
letter on pages 1-4 and the Commission's financial statements, which begin on page 14. 

Financial Highlights 

The Commission's assets exceeded its liabilities at October 31, 2019 by $127,279,287, which represents a 
3.02% increase from last fiscal year. 

The Commission's toll revenue decreased by $322,446 (1.33%) conq)ared to the prior fiscal year. 

The vehicle license tax, which is dedicated to debt service, increased by $45,866 (0.71%) compared to the 
prior fiscal year. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The following graphic illustrates the minimum requirements for government entities engaged in business-
type activities established by Governmental Accounting Standards Commission. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

n 
Basic Financial Statements 

I Suppl 

I 
Supplementary information 

(other than MD&A) 

These financial statements consist of two sections - Management's Discussion and Analysis (this section), 
and the basic financial statements (including the notes to the financial statements). This report also 
contains supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 



Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

The Commission's activities are reported in a single proprietary fund. A flind is a grouping of related 
accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or 
objectives. The Commission, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 

The Commission's financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. 
Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, expenses 
are recognized in the period in which they are incurred. 

Basic Financial Statements 

The basic financial statements present information for the Commission as a whole, in a format designed 
to make the statements easier for the reader to un(krstand. The statements in this section include the 
Statement of Net Position; the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and the 
Statement of Cash Flows. 

Statement of Net Position 
This statement presents the current and noneurrent assets, deferred outflows of resources, current and 
noneurrent portions of liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net 
position. Net position may provide a useful indicator of whetlier the financial position of the Commission 
is improving or deteriorating. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
This statement presents information showing how the Commission's net position changed as a result of 
current year operations. Regardless of when cash is affected, all changes in net position are reported when 
the underlying transactions oeciu". As a result, there are transactions included that will not affect cash until 
future fiscal periods. 

Statement of Cash Flows 
This statement presents information showing how the Commission's cash changed as a result of current 
year operations. The cash flow statement is prepared using the direct method and includes the 
reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities (indirect method) as 
required by GASB 34. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
The notes provi(k additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the (teta provided in 
the financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 19-37. 

Other Information 
This report also presents required supplementary information on other post-employment benefits and 
pension plans. Required supplementary information can be found on pages 38 — 41 of this report. 



Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Financial Analysis of the Entity 

The condensed statements of net position consist of the following at October 31: 

2019 2018 Variance % Variance 
Assets 
Current assets $ 19,853,727 
Current assets, restricted 73,598,231 
Capital assets, net 194,101,988 
Net Pension asset ___ 

Deferred outflows of resources 3.816,832 

291.370,778 

$ 20,294,711 $ (440,984) -2.17% 
127,120,949 (53,522,718) -42.10% 
127,427,614 66,674,374 52.32% 

598,387 (598,387) -100.00% 

275,441,661 12,112,285 4.40% 
1,583,504 2,233,328 141.04% 

$ 277,025,165 $ 14,345,613 5.18% 

Liabilities 
airrentliabiiities $ 3,472,780 $ 1,495,160 $ 1,977,620 132.27% 
Current liabilities payable from 

restricted assets 12,711,337 7,564,360 5,146,977 68.04% 
Noncurrent liabilities 144,090,542 142,832,212 1,258,330 0.88% 

160,274,659 151,891,732 8,382,927 5.52% 
Deferred inflows of resources 425,865 2,015,056 (1,589,191) -78.87% 
Net position 
Net investment in capital assets 95,946,206 (9,768,998) 105,715,204 1082.15% 
Restricted 23,228,629 112,977,960 (89,749,331) -79.44% 
Unrestricted 11,495,419 19,909,415 (8,413,996) -42.26% 

6.13% 

5.18% 

130,670,254 123,118,377 7,551,877 

$ 291,370,778 $ 277,025,165 $ 14,345,613 

* The Commission corrected a prior period misstatement, resulting in a piior period adjustment to restiicted cmrent assets and 
restricted fiet position. See note 13 to finaticial statements for more detail. The balances at October 31, 2018 bi the above 
schedule, reflect the prior period adjustment. 

Restricted net position represents those assets that are not available for spending as a result of legislative 
requirements, donor agreements, or grant requirements. Conversely, unrestricted net assets are those that 
do not have any limitations on how these amounts may be spent. 

Current assets (unrestricted and restricted) decreased by S53,963,702, approximately 36.61% from 
October 31, 2018 to October 31,2019, due primarily from restricted cash being used to purchase capital 
assets. Noncurrent assets consists of capital assets and a net pension asset. The net pension asset is the 
amount by which the pension plan's assets exceed the total pension liability. The Commission had a net 
pension asset of $598,387 at October 31, 2018 and a net pension liability of $3,628,700 at October 31, 
2019; a decrease of $4,227,087, or approximately 706%. 

10 



Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Noncurrent liabilities consist of accrued compensated absences, other postemployment benefits 
obligation, net pension liability, and bonds payable. Noncurrent liabilities increased by $1,258,330, 
approximately 0.88% ixom October 31, 2018 to October 31, 2019, due primarily from an increase in net 
pension liability. 

The condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position consist of the following 
for the years ended October 31: 

2019 2018 Variance % Variance 
Operating revenues 
Tolls $ 23,867,547 $ 24,189,993 $ (322,446) -1.33% 
Other operating revenues 91,224 294,004 (202,780) -68.97% 

23,958,771 24,483,997 (525,226) -2.15% 
Operating expenses 
Personal ser\4ces 8,373,482 7,984,215 389,267 4.88% 
Depreciation 5,968,673 5,765,975 202,698 3.52% 
Other operating expenses 6,347,722 7,043,645 (695,923) -9.88% 

20,689,877 20,793,835 (103,958) -0.50% 
Operating loss 3,268,894 3,690,162 (421,268) -11.42% 

Non-operating revenues 10,440,587 8,129,388 2,311,199 28.43% 

Non-operating expenses (6,157,604) (5,270,213) (887,391) 16.84% 
4,282,983 2,859,175 1,423,808 49.80% 

Change in net position 7,551,877 6,549,337 1,002,540 15.31% 
Net position, beginning of year 123,767,592 120,771,056 2,996,536 2.48% 

Prior period adjustment (649,215) (4,202,016) 3,552,801 84.55% 

Net position, end of year $ 130,670,254 $ 123,118,377 : ̂ 7,551,877 6.13% 

* The Commission correcled a prior period misstatement, resulting in a prior period adjustment to non-operating revenues. See 
note 13 to financial statements for more detail. The balances at October 31, 2018 in the above schedule reflect the prior period 
adjustment 

The Commission's operating revenues decreased by $525,226, approximately 2.15%, due primarily to a 
decrease in toll revenues. Operating expenses decreased by $103,958, approximately 0.50%, due 
primarily to a decrease in costs associated with bridge supplies and maintenance. Net position increased 
by $7,551,877 from October 31, 2018 to October 31, 2019. 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets consist of tlie following at October 31; 

2019 2018 Variance % Variance 

Building S 5,878.307 S 5,027,720 S 850,587 16.92% 
Furniture, fixtures, equipment 14,066,361 12,627,751 1,438,610 11.39% 
Infrastructure 342,420,316 272,066,466 70,353,850 25.86% 

362,364,984 289,721,937 72,643,047 25.07% 
Accumulated depreciation (168,262,996) (162,294,323) (5,968,673) -3.68% 

$ 194,101,988 $ 127,427,614 $ 66,674,374 52.32% 

Capital assets increased by $66,674,347, approxinwtely 52.32%, over the prior fiscal year due primarily 
to infi"astructure additions. The 2017 revenue bonds were used to acquire the infiastructure assets. 
Additions for the year ended October 31, 2019 included: 

Building $ 850,587 
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 1,438,610 
Infrastructure 70,353,850 

72,643,047 

Revenue Bonds 

The Commission had $134,221,835 of revenue bonds outstanding at October 31, 2019, compared to 
$137,196,612 at October 31, 2018, a decrease of approximately 2.17%. See note 6 to financial statements 
for more details. 

2019 2018 Variance % Variance 

Revenue bonds $ 134,221,835 $ 137,196,612 $ (2,974,777) -2.17% 

The Commission's bond indebtedness carries a Standard & Poor's "A" rating. 

Legal Claims 

The Commission has estimated claims of $1,803,484 outstanding at October 31, 2019 compared with 
$1,860,232 at October 31, 2018. 

Budget 

The annual budget is approved by the Commission during its August meeting. The budget is then 
approved by the Joint Legislative Committee on the Budget of the Louisiana Legislature. 

12 



Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

The Commission and management considered tlie following factors and indicators when setting next 
year's budget, rates, and fees: 

• Toll Revenue Forecast, which is provided by the Traffic Engineers in accordance with the Trust 
Indenture 

• Prior year's expenses 

• State Highway Fund No. 2 Forecasts by the Revenue Estimating Conference and the Legislative 
Fiscal Office. The Commission's share of Highway Fund No. 2 is designated for Debt Service 
first, and then bridge maintenance and rehabilitation. 

• Potential unknown impacts of Covid-19. 

The Commission expects that next year's results may decline based on the following: 

• The overall economy in the area may result in fewer crossings. 

• Increase in costs related to infrastructure improvements. 

Contacting the Commission's Management 

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors 
with a general overview of the Commission's finances and to show the Commission's accountability for 
the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, 
contact the Director of Finance, Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission, P.O. Box 7656, Metairie, 
LA 70010. 

13 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Statement of Net Position 
October 31. 2019 

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Interest receivable 

expenses 
Inventory 
Investments 

Restricted 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Vehicle license tax receivable 
Investments 

Noncurrent Assets 
Capital assets, net 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred outflows related to pension plan 
Deferred outflows related to OPEB plan 

16,806,889 
41,589 
83,810 

1,466,883 
856,842 
597.714 

19,853,727 

25,914,519 
2,237,139 

45,446,573 
73,598,231 
93,451,958 

194,101,988 
194,101,988 
287,553,946 

3,157,861 
658,971 

3,816,832 

$ 291,370,778 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Statement of Net Position (Continued) 
October 31. 2019 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 288,047 
Accrued pa5Toll expenses 152,671 
Other post-employment benefits - current 227,715 
Retainage payable 1,721,453 
Unearned toll revenue 1,082,894 

3,472,780 
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets 

Capital projects payable 6,931,018 
Revenue bonds payable, current 2,882,066 
Accrued interest 2,898,253 

12,711,337 
16,184,117 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Tag deposits 1,181,525 
Estimated liability for claims 1,803,484 
Other deposits 10,983 
Revenue bonds payable, net of current portion 131,339,769 
Accrued compensated absences 820,057 
Net pension liability 3,628,700 
Other post-employment benefits 5,306,024 

160,274,659 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Deferred inflows related to pension plan 238,477 
Deferred inflows related to OPEB plan 187,388 

425,865 
Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 95,946,206 
Restricted 23,228,629 
Unrestricted 11,495,419 

130,670,254 

$ 291,370,778 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
October 31. 2019 

Tolls $ 23,867,547 
Miscellaneous revenues 91,224 

23,958,771 
Operating Expenses 
Personal services 8,373,482 
Contractual services 39,499 
Operating senices 2,924,271 
Supplies and maintenance 2,265,340 
Professional services 439,005 
Administrative 679,607 
Depreciation 5,968,673 

20,689,877 
Operating Income 3,268,894 

Non-Operating Revenues(Expenses) 
Vehicular license tax 6,489,477 
Investment income 

Interest ineome 2,486,289 
Change in fair value 600,045 

Pa5mients to parishes (350,000) 
Amortization of bond premium'discount 864,776 
Bond issuance (11,023) 
Interest expense (5,796,581) 

4,282,983 
Change in Net Position 7,551,877 
Beginning Net Position 123,767,592 
Prior period adjustment {Note 13) (649,215) 

Ending Net Position $ 130,670,254 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
16 



Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Statement of Cash Flows 
October 31. 2019 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 
Receipts 

Received from customers, including cash deposits $ 23,879,077 
Disbursements 

Pa5mients to employees for sendees (7,112,997) 
Pa5mients to suppliers for goods and services (6,298,762) 

(13,411,759) 
Net cash provided by operating activities 10,467,318 

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities 
Vehicular license tax 6,380,127 
Subsidy to local governments (350,000) 
Net eash provided by non-capital financing activities 6,030,127 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Purchase of capital assets (65,704,464) 
Principal payments made on bonds (2,974,777) 
Amortization of bonds 864,776 
Interest paid (5,840,881) 
Bond issuance costs (11,023) 
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (73,666,369) 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Net purchases/sales of investment securities 46,460,278 
Earnings from investments 3,132,367 
Net cash provided by investing activities 49,592,645 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (7,576,279) 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 50,297,687 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 42,721,'^ 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) 
October 31. 2019 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided 
by operating activities: 

Operating income 
Adjustments to reconeile operating ineome to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Changes in assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 

and deferred inflows of resources 
Decrease (increase) in: 

Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Deferred outflows related to pension plan 
Deferred outflows related to OPEB plan 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll expenses 
Retainage payable 
Unearned toll revenue 
Capital projects payable 
Tag deposits 
Estimated liability for claims 
Accrued compensated absences 
Other post-en^loyment benefits obligation 
Net pension liability(asset) 
Deferred inflows related to pension plan 
Deferred inflows related to OPEB plan 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

$ 3,268,894 

5,968,673 

(14,139) 
4,601 

(1,915,970) 
(317,358) 

101,107 
27,645 

(23,430) 

(42,125) 
(56,748) 

(158,138) 
986,410 

4,227,087 
(1,557,430) 

(31,761) 

$ 10,467,318 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
18 



Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Notes to Financial Statements 

1. History and Summai^' of Significant Accounting Policies 

History and Nature of Operations 
The Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission was established by articles of incorporation dated 
October 20, 1954, between the parishes of Jefferson and St. Tammany. Under the authority of Louisiana 
Revised Statute (R.S.) 33:1324, the parishes were granted the right and privilege to unite and incorporate 
a joint Commission for the purpose of constructing, operating, and maintaining a toll bridge or causeway 
and requisite approaches across Lake Pontchartrain, comiecting the tw^o parishes, known as the Greater 
New Orleans Expressway. Article 6, Section 22(g)(5) of the 1921 Louisiana Constitution confirmed the 
power of the parishes to jointly construct the expressway through the issuance of revenue bonds for that 
purpose and the authority to levy a reasonable toll that is sufficient in amount to provide adequate pay for 
all costs of operation and maintenance including debt ser\4ce together with fiinds dedicated Irom 
vehicular license taxes. In addition to operating and maintaining the 23.87 mile long parallel expressway 
bridges, Act 762 of 1986 of the Regular Session of the Louisiana Legislature authorized the Commission 
to police the Huey P. Long Bridge. The act also requires that, after all bonds principal and interest are 
fully paid, the expressway bridge becomes tlie property of the State of Louisiana and tliereafter be 
operated and maintained by the Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development as a toll-free 
project and as part of the state highway system. 

The Commission is governed by five members, three of whom are appointed by the governor, including 
one member from Jefferson Parish and another member from St. Tammany Parish for a tenn of two years 
each. The third member appointed by the govemor is for a one-year term alternately from Jefferson and 
St. Tammany Parishes. Of the remaining two members, one member is appointed from Jefferson Parish 
by the Jefferson Parish Council, and one member is appointed ixom St. Tammany Parish by the St. 
Tammany Parish Council for two-year terms. 

Financial Reporting Entity 
Governmental Accounting Standarck Commission (GASB) issued Statement No. 61 (GASB 61), The 
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and 34, to determine if a 
component unit is included in the financial reporting entity of its primary government. The Commission 
is eonsidered a component unit of the State of Louisiana because: the state exereises oversight 
responsibility in that the governor appoints the Commission members and public sendee is rendered 
within the state's boundaries, and the Commission provides specific financial benefits to and may impose 
specific financial burdens on the State of Louisiana. The accompanying basic financial statements present 
information only as to the transactions of the Commission. 

Annually the State of Louisiana issues a basic financial statement which incliKles the activity contained in 
the accompanying financial statement. The basie finaneial statement is issued by the Louisiana Division 
of Administration - Office of Statewide Reporting and Accomiting Policy and audited by tlie Louisiana 
Legislative Auditor. 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund. 
Proprietary flinds are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are included on 
the Statement of Net Position. 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Notes to Financial Statements 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents inereases (revenues) and 
decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized 
in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is 
incurred. 

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering 
goock in connection with a proprietary ftind's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating 
revenues are user charges and fees, while operating expenses consist of salaries, ordinary maintenance, 
assessments, indirect costs and depreciation. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

Net Position 
The statement of net position reports net position as the difference between all other elements in a 
statement of net position and is displayed in three components—^net inv'estment in capital assets, restricted 
net position (distinguishing between major categories of restrictions), and unrestricted net position. 

• Net Investment in Capital Assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonck, mortgages, notes, or 
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets 

• Restricted - Consists of amounts with constraints placed on the use by (1) external groups such as 
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation 

• Unrestricted - All other amounts that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net investment in 
capital assets" 

Restricted net position represents unexpended revenue bond proceeds as well as certain other resowces 
set aside for the purpose of improvements to capital assets and funding debt service payments in 
accordance with bond resolutions. 

Wlien both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Commission's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted as needed. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Budget Practices 
The general manager submits proposed operating budgets to the Commission and to the general public for 
inspection. The budgets are prepared on a modified accrual basis of accounting. For the period under 
audit, tlie proposed budgets were advertised in the official journal and fomwlly adopted by the 
Commission. Annually, in August, the original budget is amended by management and is ratified by the 
Commission during October. 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purpose of the statement of net position and statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 
include all demand accounts and money market funds of the Commission with an original maturity of 90 
days or less. 

Investments 
Investments are carried at fair value. Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on trade dates, and 
realized gains and losses are determined on the basis of average cost of securities sold. Investment 
retum(loss) includes interest, dividends, administrative fees, and realized and unrealized gains and losses, 
and is included in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position as investment income. 

Fair Value Measurements 
The Commission's financial instruments include cash deposits, money market accounts, and U.S. 
Government Obligations. The carrying amounts reported in the statement of financial position are stated 
at cost which approximates fair value because of the short maturities of those instruments. 

Accounts and Grants Receivable 
Receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end but have not been collected at year end. 
Management monitors the receivable balances and assesses the collectability at year end based upon the 
historical collections, knowledge of the individual or entity, and the age of the receivable balance. As a 
result of these reviews, customer balances deemed to be uncollectible are charged to the allowance for 
doubtful accounts. Management has deemed all accounts collectible at year-end and no allowance has 
been recoixkd. 

Prepaid Expenses 
Payments to vendors for insurance and other operating expenses include costs applicable to the next 
accounting period and are recorded as prepaid items. 

Capital Assets 
Capital assets with a cost of $1,000 or more are reported at cost in the statement of net position. Repairs 
and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over 
the estimated ireful lives as follows: 

Description Years 

Automobiles 5 
Data processing equipment 5 
Furniture and fixtures 10 
Buildings 40 
Infrastructure 40 

Inventory 
The Commission maintains an inventory of spare bridge components for emergency use and is valued at 
the lower of cost or market. 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Compensated Absences 
Employees earn and accumulate annual and sick leave at various rates, depending on their years of 
service. Annual and sick leave that may be accumulated by each employee is limited. Upon termination, 
employees or their heirs are compensated for 30 days aecumulated annual leave and up to 45 days of 
unused sick leave at tlie employee's hourly rate of pay at the time of termination. Any unused grandfather 
leave accumulated before October 31, 2019 is compensated. Upon retirement, an uncompensated annual 
leave at the employee's option plus unused sick leave in excess is used to compute retirement benefits for 
employees who earned full-time status before 2007. Compensated absences are recognized as an expense 
and liability in the financial statements when incurred. As of October 31, 2019, employees of the 
Commission have accumulated and vested $820,057 of employee annual and sick leave benefits. 

Deferred Compensation Plan 
The Commission offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the "Plan") created in accordance 
with Internal Revenue Code 457. The Plan is administered by the Commission. The Plan, available to all 
full-time employees of the Commission, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. 
All amounts of compensation deferred, all property and rights purchased, and all income, property, or 
rights are (until paid or made available to the employee or other beneficiary) held in trust by Lincoln 
Financial for tlie exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. 

Participants may contribute up to the IRS maximum calendar limit with the Commission matching up to 
$72 per month. All contributions are immediately vested. The Commission contributed $77,695 to the 
plan during the year ended October 31, 2019. 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consmnption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not 
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Commission has the 
following items that qualify for reporting in this category; 

Pension plan — these deferred outflows result from pension contributions after the measurement date 
(deferred and recognized in the following fiscal year) and'or differences in projected and actual earnings 
on pension assets ((kferred and amortized over a closed five year period). 

OPEB plan — these deferred outflows result from OPEB contributions after the measurement date 
(deferred and recognized in the following fiscal year). 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Deferred inflows of resources are acquisitions of net position or fund balance by the Commission that is 
applicable to a future reporting period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources until then. 
The Commission has the following items that qualify for reporting in this category: 

Pension plan — these deferred inflows result from differences in projected and actual earnings on pension 
assets (deferred and amortized over a closed five year period). 

OPEB plan - these deferred inflows result from changes in assumptions and changes in proportion and 
differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions (deferred and 
amortized over a closed five year period). 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Accounting Pronouncements 
The GASB has issued the following Statements which will become effective in years as shown below: 

Statement No. 83, "Certain Asset Retirement Obligations" addresses accounting and financial reporting 
for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated 
with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. A government that has legal obligations to perform future 
asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets should recognize a liability based on the 
guidance in this Statement. This Statement establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of 
recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources for AROs. The requirements 
of this Statement are effective for reporting periods begimiing after June 15, 2018. Management has not 
yet determined the effect of this Statement on the financial statements. 

Statement No. 84, "Fiduciary Activities " improves guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary 
activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. 
This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. 
The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the 
fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are 
included to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are 
fiduciary activities. An activity meeting the criteria should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic 
financial statements. This Statement also provides for recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in a 
fiduciary fiind when an event has occurred that compels the government to disburse fiduciary resources. 
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
2018. Management has not yet determined tlie effect of this Statement on the financial statements. 

Statement No. 87, "Leases " increases the usefulness of governments' financial statements by requiring 
recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating 
leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions 
of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that 
leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to 
recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a 
lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of 
information about governments' leasing activities. The requirements of this Statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Earlier application is encouraged. 
Management has not yet determined the effect of this Statement on the financial statements. 

Statement No. 89, "Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period" 
establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. 
Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in accordance with the 
requirements of paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial 
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which 
are superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before tlie end of a 
construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial 
statements prepared using the economic resowces measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred 
before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset 
reported in a business-type activity or enterprise fund. The requirements of this Statement are effective 
for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Management has not yet determined the effect 
of this Statement on the financial statements. 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Notes to Financial Statements 

2. Deposits with Financial Institutions 

For reporting purposes, deposits with financial institutions include demand deposits and are stated at eost, 
which approximates market. Under state law these deposits must be secured by federal deposit insurance 
or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus 
the federal deposit insuranee must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. The 
Commission's deposits at October 31, 2019 eonsisted of the following: 

Deposits per statement of net position (reconciled bank balance) $ 2,382,089 

Deposits in bank aecounts per bank $ 2,575,519 

Category 3 bank balances: 

Uninsured and uncollateralized 

Uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging 
institution's trust department or agent, in the Commission's name 

Uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging 
institution or its agent but not in the Commission's name 2,325,519 

Total category 3 bank balances $ 2,325,519 

Custodial Deposit Risk 
In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the deposits may not be returned 
to the Commission. As of October 31, 2019, $2,325,519 of the Commission's bank balance was exposed 
to custodial credit risk because the deposits were uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the 
pledging institution's trust department or agent but not in the Commission's name. 

Money Market Accounts 
The Commission had $40,339,318 within money market accounts at October 31, 2019. The aecounts have 
a maturity of less than 90 days and are reported as cash equivalents. The balance is reported at cost which 
approximates market. The money market accounts consists of securities issued or guaranteed as to 
principal and interest by the U.S. government or its agencies or instrumentalities. At October 31, 2019, 
the Commission's money market accounts are uninsured on the performance of the custodian and are 
exposed to custodial credit risk because they are held by the counterparty's trust department, but not in 
the Commission's name. 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Notes to Financial Statements 

3. Investments 

At October 31, 2019, investments consist of the following: 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 

U.S. Treasury notes ! bonds $ $ 17,495,633 $ 17,495,633 
Federal agency securities - 2,499,175 2,499,175 
U.S. Treasury bills 597,713 20,781,918 21,379,630 
State municipal bonds - 4,669,849 4,669,849 

S 597,713 $ 45,446,575 $ 46,044,287 

Interest Rale and Credit Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk tliat changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment - the greater the sensitivity of its fair 
value to changes in market interest rates is. The Commission limits its interest rate risk by limiting its 
investing to securities with terms of one year or less. 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder 
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a national recognized statistical 
rating organization. Credit quality ratings are not required for U.S. govemment seeurities. Federal agency 
securities are securities, usually bonds, issued by a U.S. Government-sponsored agency. The investment 
policy of the Commission contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer 
beyond that stipulated by the State of Louisiana. 

At October 31, 2019, the Commission's investments are uninsured on the performance of the custodian 
and are exposed to custodial credit risk because they are held by the counterparty's trust department, but 
not in the Commission's name. Credit risk is managed by limiting investments to those allowed under 
state law, which includes instruments issued by state or Federal governments. 

Information about the credit risk and sensitivity of the fair values of the Commission's investments to 
market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the 
Commission's investments by maturity: 

Investment T>pe 

U.S. Treasnn' notes / bonds 
Federal Agency Securities 

Federal National Mortgage 
Association 

U.S. Treasury bills 
State mimicipal bonds 

Less Than 
1 Year 

14,995,333 

2,499,175 
21,379,630 

2,749,125 

41,623,263 

i to 2 
Years 

2 to 5 
Years 

More Than 
5 Years Total 

2.500.300 $ 

1,420,724 500,000 

$ 17,495,633 

2,499,175 
21,379,630 

4,669,849 

3,921,024 500,000 $ 46,044,287 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Notes to Financial Statements 

4. Fair Value Measurements 

The fair value measurement accounting literature provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs 
to valuation tecliniques used to measure fair value. This hierarchy consists of three broad levels. Level I 
inputs to the valuation methodolog}'^ are based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets in active 
markets that the Commission has the ability access. Level 2 inputs are based primarily on quoted prices 
for similar assets in active or inaetive markets and'or based on inputs that are derived principally from or 
corroborated by observable market data. Level 3 inputs are unobservable and are based on assumptions 
market participants would utilize in pricing the assets. 

The Commission uses appropriate valuation techniques based on the available inputs to measure the fair 
value of its investments. The asset's fair value measurement level with the fair value hierarchy is based on 
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. When available, valuation 
techniques maximize the use of obseivable inputs and minimize the use of unobser\^able inputs. The 
following table sets forth, by level, the Commission's assets at fair value as of October 31, 2019: 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
Cash equivalents 

Money market accounts S 40,339,318 $ - $ - S 40,339,318 
Investments 

U-S. Treasury notes / bonds 17,495,633 - - 17,495,633 
Federal agency securities - 2,499,175 - 2,499,175 
U.S. Treasury bill 21,379,630 - - 21,379,630 
State municipal bonds - 4,669,849 - 4,669,849 

38,875,263 7,169,024 46,044,287 

S 79,214,581 $ 7,169,024 $ S 86,383,605 

5. Capital Assets 

A summary of changes in capital assets is as follows: 

Balance at Balance at 
10/31/18 Additions Deletions 10/31/19 

Capital assets, being depreciated 
Building S 5,027,720 S 850,587 $ $ 5,878,307 
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 12,627,751 1,438,610 14,066,361 
Infrastructure 272,066.466 70,353,850 342,420,316 

289,721,937 72,643,047 362,364,984 
Accumulated depreciation (162,294,323) (5,968.673) (168.262,996) 

S 127,427,614 S 66,674,374 $ $ 194,101,988 

Depreciation expense for the year ended October 31, 2019 w^as $5,968,673. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

6. Noncurrent Liabilities 

The following is a summary of the noncurrent liabilities for the year ended October 31, 2019: 

Balance at PajTiients and Balance at Due Within 
10/31/18 .Additions Reductions 10/31/19 One Year 

Revenue Bonds 
Refunding, Series 2013 S 19,395,000 S S (1,560,000) S 17,835,000 S 1,630,000 
Refunding, Series 2014 17,480,000 - (65,000) 17,415,000 70,000 
Series 2017 87,495,000 - (485,000) 87,010,000 345,000 

124,370,000 - (2,110,000) 122.260,000 2,045,000 
Bond Premium 12,826,612 - (864,777) 11,961,835 837,066 

137,196,612 - (2.974,777) 134,221,835 2.882,066 

OPEB obligation 4,547,329 1,214,125 (227,715) 5,533,739 227,715 
Net pension liability - 4,235,426 (606,726) 3,628,700 -
Accrued compensated absences 978,195 495.513 (653,651) 820,057 -

5,525,524 5,945.064 (1.488,092) 9,982,496 227,715 

S 142,722,136 $ 5,945,064 S (4,462,869) $ 144,204,331 $ 3,109,781 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 
On September 30, 2013, the Commission issued $25,545,000 of Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2013. 
The proceeds of this issue were used to refund a portion of the Commission's outstanding Series 2003 
Bonds and pay costs of issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds including the cost of the Bond Insurance 
Policy. The portion of the 2003 Bonds were redeemed in on November 1, 2013 in the amount of 
$25,545,000 principal and $644,193.75 of accrued interest. The Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, 
are secured by user fees, expressway bridge tolls, and other revenues. These bonds require future annual 
debt service installments of $450,000 to $2,340,000 beginning November 1, 2013 through November 1, 
2028. The bonds carry interest rates between 3% - 5% and interest to maturity at October 31, 2019 totals 
$3,836,777 through November 1, 2028. 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 
On June 19, 2014, the Commission issued $17,540,000 of Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2014. The 
proceeds of this issue were used to refund the final portion of the Commission's outstanding Series 2003 
Bonds and pay cost of issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds including the cost of the Bond Insurance Policy. 
The portion of the 2003 Bonds were redeemed in on June 19, 2013. The Refunding Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2014, are secured by user fees, expressway bridge tolls, and other revenues. These bonds require 
future annual cfcbt service installments of $60,000 to $3,040,000 beginning November 1,2018 through 
November 1, 2034. The bonds carry interest rates from 2.625% to 4% and interest to maturity at October 
31, 2019 totals $7,182,683 through November 1, 2034. 
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Revenue Bonds, Scries 2017 
On August 22, 2017, the Commission issued $87,495,000 of Revenue Bonds, Series 2017. The proceeds 
of the issue will be used for safety improvement projects and pay cost of issuance of the Series 2017 
Bonds including the cost of the Bond Insurance Policy. The Revenue Bonds, Series 2017, are secured by 
user fees and expressway bridge tolls. These bonds require future annual debt seivice installments of 
$485,000 to $7,865,000 beginning November 1, 2018 through October 31, 2047. The bonds carry interest 
rates from 1.03% to 3.14% and interest to nmturity at Oetober 31, 2019 totals $87,820,250 through 
November 1, 2047. 

The annual requirements to amortize all bonds outstanding at October 31, 2019, including total interest to 
maturity of $98,839,710, are as follows: 

For the Yew 
Elided Refunding Series 2013 Refunding Series 2014 Series 2017 

October 31: Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2020 $ 1,630,000 $ 785,713 $ 70,000 $ 618,.569 $ 345,000 $ 4,341,875 
2021 1,720,000 701,963 65,000 616,544 185,000 4,328,625 
2022 1,800,000 613,963 75,000 616,444 - 4,324,000 
2023 1,895,000 521,588 75,000 612,194 - 4,324,000 
2024 1,980,000 424,713 90,000 609,719 1,905,000 4,324,000 

Thereafter 8.810.000 788.837 17.040.000 4.109.213 84.575.000 66.177.750 

$ 17,835,000 $ 3,836,777 $ 17,415,000 $ 7,182,683 $ 87,010,000 $ 87,820,250 

7. Post-Employment Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits 

Plan Description 
As of October 31, 2017, the Commission no longer offered post-employment health care benefits to 
retirees of Medicare age. In addition, employees hired after December 31, 2016 are not eligible for post-
employment health care and life insurance benefits. These changes resulted in a restatement of net 
position as detailed at Note 13. Substantially all Commission employees hired before December 31, 2016 
become eligible for postemployment health care and life insurance benefits ("OPEB") if they reach 
normal retirement age while working for the Commission. The Commission does not issue a publicly 
available financial report of the OPEB report; however, the OPEB report is available from the 
Commission by request. 

Funding Policy 
The benefits for retirees and similar benefits for active employees are provided through an insurance 
company whose premiums are paid by the Commission. The Commission pays 100% of the retirees' total 
premium and 40% of dependent premiums until Medicare eligible, at which point the retiree will no 
longer be eligible for OPEB benefits. Participants who retired prior to March 1, 2017 have life insurance 
coverage of $13,000. Participants who retire after Mareh 1, 2017 have life insurance coverage of 50% of 
the Basic Life coverage in force at the time of retirement. Life insurance drops to 65% of the initial 
amount at age 70, and 50% at age 75. Retirees pay 30% of the life insurance premium if hired before 
November 1, 2012 and 40% of the life insurance premium if hired on or after November 1, 2012. 
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The Commission and the retirees pay their respective share of the premiums on a "pay-as-you-go" basis. 
For the year ended October 31, 2019, the Commission contributed $227,715 for 97 retirees. 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to OPEB 
At October 31, 2019, the Commission reported a liability of $5,533,739 for its total OPEB liability. The 
total OPEB liability was measured as of November 1, 2018, and was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of that date. The Commission's total OPEB liability was based on projections of the Commission's 
long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, aetuarially detennined. 

For the year ended Oetober 31, 2019, the Commission recognized a total OPEB expense of $295,678. The 
Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
from the following sources: 

Differences between expeeted and actual experience 

Changes in assumptions 

Net differenee between projected and aetual earnings 
on OPEB plan investments 

Changes in proportion and differences between Employer 
contributions and proportionate share of eontributions 

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

658,971 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resourees 

187,388 

227,715 

886,686 $ 187,3) 

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from the Commission's benefit payments 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total collective OPEB 
liability in the next fiseal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Period Ended Amount 

October 31, 2019 
October 31,2020 
October 31, 2021 
October 31,2022 
October 31, 2023 

Thereafter 

78,068 
78,068 
78,068 
78,068 
78,068 
81,243 

471,583 
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
The total OPEB obligation in the actuarial valuation was detemiined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurements; 

Valuation date 

Actuarial cost mefJiod 

Investment rate of return 

Discount rate 

Healtlicare cost trend rare 

Salarv' increases, including 

inflation and merit increases 

Cost of living adjustments 

Mortality 

November 1, 2018 

Entry age normal cost 

N/A. Benefit payments are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis 

2.79% per annum 

6.7% year 1 graded to 5.3% year-12 

3.00% 

Not substantively automatic 

PiibG-H2010 projected foiwaid with MP-2019 

Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 2.79%. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current 
contribution rate and that employer contributions from participating employers will be made at 
contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current active and inactive plan members. 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the Commission's total OPEB liability using the current discount rate as well as 
what the Commission's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 
one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point higher than the current rate: 

Total collective OPEB liability 

1.0% Decrease 
(1.79%) 

$ 6,156,584 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(2.79%) 

1.0% 
Increase 
(3.79%) 

5,533,739 $ 4,992,422 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes to the Health Cost Trend Rate 
The following presents the Commission's total OPEB liability calculated using assumed trend rates, as 
well as what the Commission's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a trend rate that 
is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point higher than the current rate: 

Total collective OPEB liability 

.0% Decrease 
(6.30%) 

$ 4,929,483 

Current 
Trend Rate 

(5.30%) 

1.0% 
Increase 
(6.30%) 

5,533,739 $ 6,278,680 
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OPEB Expense and changes in OPEB Obligation 
The Commission's Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) represents a level of funding that, if paid 
on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded 
actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed 30 years. The OPEB expense, the percentage of OPEB 
expense contributed to tlie plan, and the OPEB obligation at the end of the year for the Commission were 
as follows: 

OPEB 
Total OPEB FiduciaiyNet Net OPEB 

Liability Position Liability 

TotalOPEBliability, begiiiiiiiig of yeai, as restated $ 4,547,329 $ - S 4,547,329 

Semcecosf 244,136 - 244,136 

Interest 201,189 - 201,189 
Differences between expected and actual experience ... 

Changes in assumptions 768,800 - 768,800 

Employer contributions (227.715) (227,715) 

Total OPEB liability, end of year $ 5,533,739 $ - S 5,533,739 

Payables to the OPEB Plan 
At October 31, 2019, the Commission included $5,752 in accounts payable for funds due to the OPEB 
plan. 

8. Defined Benefit Pension Flan 

The Commission contributes to the Parochial Employees' Retirement System ("PERS"), a cost-sharing, 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of Louisiana (State). PERS 
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to plan 
members and beneficiaries. PERS is comprised of two distinct plans. Plan A and Plan B, with separate 
assets and benefit provisions. Employees of the Commission are members of Plan A. Benefit provisions 
are established by state law and may be amended only by the State Legislature. PERS issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for 
PERS. That report may be obtained by writing to PERS at P.O. Box 14619, Baton Rouge, Louisiana, 
70898, or by calling 225.928.1361. 

Significant Accounting Policies 
The System's employer schedules were prepared i^ing the accrual basis of accounting. 
Members' eaniable compensation, for which the employer allocations are based, is recognized in the 
period in which the employee is compensated for ser\dces performed. The member's eamable 
compensation is attributed to the employer for which the member is employed as of December 31,2018. 

The System is not alloeated a proportionate share of the net pension liability(asset) related to its 
employees. The net pension liability(asset) attributed to the System's employees is allocated to the 
remaining employers based on their respective employer allocation percentage. 
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Plan fiduciary net position is a significant component of the System's collective net pension 
liability(asset). The System's plan fiduciary net position was determined using the accrual basis of 
accounting. The System's assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were recorded with the use of 
estimates and assumptions in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Such estimates primarily related to unsettled transactions and events as of the date of 
the financial statements and estimates over the determination of the fair market value of the System's 
investments. Accordingly, actual results may differ from estimated amounts. 

Benefits Provided 
The Flan provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. 
Retirement benefits for employees are calculated as 3% of the plan member's final average compensation 
multiplied by their years of service. Death benefits are equal to 100% of benefits if member is eligible for 
nonnal retirement or 60% of final compensation if not eligible for normal retirement. Disability 
retirement benefits are calculated to be equal to the lesser of an amount equal to 3% of the member's final 
average compensation multiplied by their years of services, not to be less than 15, or 3% multiplied by 
years of ser\dce assuming continued seivdce to age 60. 

For plan members hired prior to Janiwry 1, 2007, a member nwy obtain retirement benefits if any of the 
following are reached: (a) any age with 30 or more years of creditable ser\dce, (b) age 55 with 25 years 
of creditable sendee, (c) age 60 with minimum of 10 years of creditable sendee, (d) age 65 with a 
minimum of 7 years of creditable sendee. 

For plan members hired after January 1, 2007, a member may obtain retirement benefits if any of the 
following are reached: (a) age 55 with 30 or more years of sendee, (b) age 62 with 10 years of sendee, 
(c) age 67 with 7 years of senice. 

The terms of the Plan provide for annual cost of living allowance for the retirees who retired prior to July 
1973. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's original benefit for each ftill calendar year since 
retirement and may only be granted if sufficient funds are available from investment income in excess of 
normal requirements. In addition, the Plan may provide an additional cost of living increase to all retirees 
and beneficiaries who are over age 65 equal to 2% of the member's benefit paid on October 1, 1977 (or 
the member's retirement date, if later). Also, the Plan may provide a cost of living increase up to 2.5% for 
retirees 62 and older. Lastly, Act 270 provided for further reduced actuarial payments to provide an 
annual 2.5% cost of living adjustment commencing at age 55. 

Contributions 
According to state statute, contributions for all employers are actuarially determined each year. For the 
year ended December 31, 2018, the actuarially determined contribution rate w^as 9.99% of member's 
compensation for Plan A and 7.01% of member's compensation for Plan B. However, the actual rate for 
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 was 11.50% for Plan A and 7.50% for Plan B. 

According to state statute, the System also receives % of 1% of ad valorem taxes collected within the 
respective parishes, except for Orleans and East Baton Rouge parishes. The System also receives revenue 
sharing funds each year as appropriated by the legislature. Tax monies and revenue sharing monies are 
apportioned between Plan A and Plan B in proportion to the member's compensation. These additional 
sources of income are used as additional employer contributions and are considered support from non-
employer contributing entities. 

32 



Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Notes to Financial Statements 

The employer contribution is actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee 
contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an 
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The Commission's contributions to PERS for 
the years ended October 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 were approximately $606,727, $606,777, and 
$624,916, respectively, which equaled the required contributions for each year. The State also made on-
behalf contributions to the Plan, of which $62,475 was recognized by the Commission for the year ended 
October 31, 2019; these on-behalf payments did not meet the criteria of a special funding situation. 

Pension Liahilities(Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At October 31, 2019, the Commission reported a liability(asset) of $3,628,700 for its proportionate share 
of the net pension liability(asset). The net pension liabiiity(asset) was measured as of December 31, 2018, 
and the total pension liability(asset) used to calculate the net pension liability(asset) was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018. The Commission's proportion of the net pension 
liability(asset) was based on a projection of the Commission's projected contribution effort to the pension 
plan for the next fiscal year as compared to the total of all participating employers' contribution effort to 
the Plan for the next fiscal year, actuarially determined. 

At December 31, 2018, the Commission's proportion was 0.81758%, which was a decrease of 0.01139% 
from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2017. 

Per tlie valuation report dated December 31, 2018, tlie Commission's proportionate share of pension 
expense was $1,406,595. At October 31, 2019, the Commission reported deferred outflows or resowces 
and deferred inflows or resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on pension plan investments 
Changes in assumptions 
Changes in proportion 
Employer contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

1,737,071 
907,294 

5,327 

508,169 

3J57.861 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

221,070 

17.407 

238.477 

At October 31, 2019, the Commission reported $508,169 as deferred outflows of resources related to 
pensions resulting from Commission contributions subsequent to the measurement date that will be 
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability(asset) in the year ended October 31, 2020. 
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources at October 
31, 2019, related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Period Ended Amount 

October 31,2020 
October 31, 2021 
October 31,2022 
October 31.2023 

826,489 
446,180 
371,197 
767,349 

$ 2,411,215 

Actuarial Assumptions 
A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability are as 
follows: 

Valuation date 

Actuarial cost method 

Estimated remaining 
service life ("ERSE") 

Investment rate of return 

Inflation rate 

Salaiy^ increases, including 
inflation and merit increases 

Cost of living adjustments 

Mortality rate 
Non-disabled members 

Disabled members 

December 31, 2018 

Entry age normal cost 

4 years 

6.50% per amium 

2.40% per annum 

4.75%, including inflation 

Only those previously granted 

MF-2018 Employee Sex Distinct Table 

MP-2018 Disabled Lives Mortality Table 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a triangulation 
method which integrated the CAPM pricing model (top-down), a treasury yield eurve approach (bottom-
up) and an equity building block model (bottom-up). Risk return and coiTelations are projected on a 
forward looking basis in equilibrium, in which best-estimates of futwe real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for eaeh major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset alloeation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 
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The target alloeation and best estimates of aritlimetie real rates of return for eaeh major asset elass are 
summarized in the followina table: 

Long-tenn Expected 
Target Asset Portfolio Real 

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return 

Fixed ineome 35% 1.22% 
Equity 52% 3.45% 
Alternatives 11% 0.65% 
Other 2% 0.11% 

100% 5.43% 
Inflation 2.00% 
Expeeted arithmetic nominal return 7.43% 

Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure tlie total pension liability(asset) was 6.50% for the valuation date of 
December 31, 2018. The projection of cash flows used to determine the diseount rate assumed that 
employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that participating employer 
eontributions will be made at eontractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those 
assumptions, the Plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future 
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-tenn expected rate of return on pension 
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability(asset). 

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability(Asset) to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 
The following presents the employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability(asset) i^ing the 
discount rate of 6.50%, as well as what the employer's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower 
(5.50%) or one percentage-point higher (7.50%) than the current rate: 

1.0% Decrease Current Discount 1.0% Increase 
(5.50%) Rate (6.50%) (7.50%) 

Employer's proportionate share 
of the net pension liability(asset) $ 7,706,386 $ 3,628,700 $ 220,109 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Detailed information about the Plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued PERS' 
financial report. 

Payable to Pension Plan 
At October 31, 2019, the Commission reported a payable of $124,275 for the outstanding amount of 
employer contributions to the pension plan required for tlie year ended October 31, 2019. Tliis amount is 
ineluded in accrued expenses at October 31, 2019. 
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9. Net Position 

Net position represent the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources and liabilities, 
deferred inflows of resom"ces. The composition of net position at October 31, 2019 was as follows: 

Net investment in capital assets 
Capital assets $ 362,364,984 
Less: accumulated depreciation (168,262,996) 
Less: bonds payable (98,155,782) 

95,946,206 
Restricted 
Debt service 

Assets held in trust 18,811,591 
Less: restricted receivables (2,23 7,139) 
Less: accrued interest on bonds (2,898,253) ——— 

Capital projects and major repairs 
Assets held in timt 52,549,501 
Less: capital contracts payable (6,931,018) 
Less: bonds payable (36,066,053) _____ 

23,228,629 
Unrestricted 11,495,419 

130.670.254 

10. Legal Proceedings and Claims 

The Commission is a defendant or co-defendant in several lawsuits in which the plaintiffs allege property 
damage and personal injury. In the opinion of the Commission's legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of 
these matters should not materially affect the financial statements. 

At October 31, 2019, the claims liability of $1,803,484 is based on the requirements of GASB Statement 
No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information before tlie issuance of the 
financial statements indicates it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial 
statements and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. Changes in the claims liability in fiscal for 
the year ended October 31, 2019 were as follows: 

Estimated liability for claims at beginning of year $ 1,860,232 
Changes in estimates 70,169 
Claims payment and expenses thereon (126,917) 

$ 1,803,484 
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11. Risk Management 

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss relating to general liability, automotive liability, and 
property insurance contracts and has a self-insured risk management program to account for and finance 
its uninsured risks of loss. Under this program, the Commission provides coverage for general and 
automotive liability up to the $500,000 deductible limits for each covered loss. The Commission 
purchased commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the risk management 
program. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage for the fiscal year. 

12. Operating Leases 

On March 31, 2017, the Commission entered into a three year lease with Edgewater Ventures at the rate 
of $10,000 per month with the option to renew for an additional period of three years at an adjusted rate 
not to be less than $10,000 per month. Future minimum rental payments for the operating lease are as 
follows: 

For the Year 
Ended October 31 Amount 

2020 $ 50,000 

The rental payments for 2019 were $120,000. 

13. Prior Period Adjustment 

During the 2018 fiscal year, the Commission w^as notified by the State of Louisiana that vehicle license 
tax revenue totaling $649,215 would be distributed to the Commission during the 2019 fiscal year, and 
management recorded vehicle license tax receivable of $649,215 at October 31, 2018. In the current fiscal 
year, the State of Louisiana suspended the allocation. Management did not record an allowance for 
doubtful accounts at October 31, 2018 since the balance was historically paid in full. As a result, 
receivables, revenues, and restricted net position were overstated at October 31, 2018. To correct the 
overstatement, management recorded a prior period adjustment. Beginning balances have been restated as 
follows: 

Restricted net position at October 31, 2018, as previously reported $ 113,627,175 
Correction of an error; vehicle license tax receivable - restricted (649,215) 

Restricted net position at October 31, 2018, as restated $ 112,977,960 

14. Subsequent Events 

The Commission's management has evaluated subsequent events tlirough April 30, 2020, which is the 
date the financial statements were available to be issued. 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability 
For the Year Ended October 31, 2019 

Service cost 
Interest 
Difference between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 
Employer contributions 

Total OPEB liability, beginning of year 

Total OPEB liability, end of year 

2019 2018 

$ 244,136 $ 270,384 
201,189 175,037 

768,800 (250,910) 
(227,715) (341,613) 
986,410 (147,102) 

4,547,329 4,694,431 

$ 5,533,739 $ 4,547,329 

Covered employee payroll S 5,018,504 $ 5,018,504 

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 110.27% 90.61% 

OPEB fiduciary net position S - $ 

OPEB fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of total OPEB liability 0.00% 0.00% 

*J7?e information above is presented as of the pension plan measurement date 

* ̂ Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they 
become available. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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December 31, 2018 
December 31, 2017 
December 31, 2016 
December 31, 2015 
December 31, 2014 

Proportion of the 
Net Pension 

Liability(Asset) 

0.81758% 
0.80618% 
0.88703% 
0.82106% 
0.88625% 

Proportionate 
Share of the Net 

Pension 
Liability( Asset) 

$ 3,628,700 
(598,387) 

1,826,844 
2,161,277 

242,309 

Covered 
Employee Payroll 

$ 5,189,516 
4,956,809 
5,236,422 
4,710,520 
4.958.141 

Proportionate 
Share of the Net 

Pension 
Liability(Asset) 
as a Percentage 

of Covered 
Employee Payroll 

69.92% 
-12.07% 
34.89% 
46.00% 
5.00% 

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position as a 
Percentage of the 

Total Pension 
Liability(Asset) 

89.10% 
101.98% 
94.15% 
92.23% 
99.15% 

*The inforrnation above is pr> 

**Schedule is intended to show 

as of the pension plan measurement date 

information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become 

See independent auditor's report. 
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Contractually 
Required 

Contribution 

Contributions in 
Relation to the 
Contractually 

Required 
Contribution 

Contribution 
Deficiency 
(Excess) 

Covered 
Employee Payroll 

Contributions as 
a Percentage of 

Covered 
Employee Payroll 

October31,2019 
October 31,2018 
October 31, 2017 
October 31, 2016 
October 31, 2015 

606,726 
606,777 
624,916 
663,948 
714,009 

606,726 
606,777 
624,916 
663,948 
714.009 

5,275,882 
5,189,516 
4,959,296 
5,018,504 
4.830J73 

11.50% 
11.69% 
12.60% 
13.23% 
14.78% 

**Sched74le is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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OPEB Schedule 

There are no assets accumulated in a trust tliat meet the requirements in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 75 to 
pay related benefits. 

Changes of Assumptions 
The discount rate used in actuarial assumptions decreased from 4.30% for the October 31, 2018 
measurement date to 2.79% for the October 31, 2019 measurement date. 

Changes in Population 
There were no changes in the Commission's census data number of participants from October 31, 2018 to 
October 3 L 2019. 

Pension Plan Schedules 

Changes of Assumptions 
The discount rate used in actuarial assmnptions decreased from 7.00% for the December 31, 2017 
measurement date to 6.50% for the December 31, 2018 measurement date. 

Measurement Date 
The amounts presented within the Schedule of Employer's Share of Net Pension Liability have a 
measurement date of December 31. 2018. 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Schedule of Compensation Paid to Board of Commissioners 
For the Year Ended October 31, 2019 

Commissioner Amount 

Tim P. Couion $ 6,836 
Patrick Fitmorris 6,836 
Donald Sharp 6,836 
Patrick Williams 
Joy H. Zainey 6,836 

$ 27.344 

The schedule of per diem payments to Commission Members is presented in compliance with House 
Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. As authorized by 
Louisiana Revised Statute 32:772, each member of the Commission shall be reimbursed when actually in 
attendance at a Commission meeting or when required to travel for the official authorized business of the 
Commission, and such reimbursement shall not exceed S75.00 per day. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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Commission Head: Carlton Dufrechou 
Position: General Manaaer 

Purpose Amount 

Salary $ 128,366 
Benefits - insurance 10,073 
Benefits - retirement 15.309 

153.748 

See independent auditor's report. 
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Extiaordiiiary 
Operations Maintenance Huev P. Vehicular Debt Construction 

Revenue and and Repair Excess Long Assets License Debt Service Series Bisitrance 

Account Maintenance Reserve Revenue Bridge Forfeiture Tax Service Reseive 2017 Reserve Total 

Balances at November 1,2018 $ 936.898 S 751.511 $ 647.655 S 14.130,732 S 1,046.853 $ 21.799 S 15.858.288 $ 2.384,536 S 2,672.375 $ 21.839,394 S 7.353 $ 50.297,725 

RECEIPTS 

Tolls 23,801.987 - - - - - - - - - - 23.801,987 

Vehicular license tax - - - - - - 6,380,127 - - - - 6,380,127 

Investment income 19.532 11.568 212.761 263.784 13.458 - 246.760 24.556 24.942 2.293,961 21.045 3.132,367 

Bond Proceeds - - - - - - - - - - - -
Federal Revenue - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other 4,313 71.551 296 - - 1,225 - - - - - 77,385 

Net investment sales and purchases - - - - - - - - - 51.096.461 324.885 51,421.346 

Amortization of bonds - - - - - - - 172,302 713.509 - - 885,811 

Transfers in - 11.019,111 12,885,812 8,017,915 566.937 - 3,500,000 3,120.639 4.670,559 29.691 183,665 43,994.329 

23,825,832 11,102,230 13,098,869 8,281,699 580.395 1.225 10,126,887 3,317.497 5.409,010 53.420.113 529,595 129,693.352 

DISBURSEMENTS 

Personal services - 5,978,911 - - 1,134,085 - - - - - - 7,112,996 

Coniractiial seivices - 38,397 - - 1.102 - - - - - - 39,499 

(Iterating services 1.095 2,674,149 - - 53.760 - - - - - - 2,729.004 

Supplies and maintenance - 665,568 2,022,609 - 3" .217 - - - - - - 2,725.394 

Professional services - 420,229 - - - - - - - - 18.876 439.005 

Administrative 371.797 290,588 - - 17.224 - - - - - - 679.609 

Capital outlay - 276.174 3.067.396 - 47.543 - - - - 61.846,171 - 65.237,284 

Debt sendee 

Principal retirement - - - - - - - 1,789.713 1.195,076 - - 2,984.789 

hiterest - - - - - - - 1.478,256 4,362.625 - - .5.840,881 

Cost of bond issuance - - - - - - - 11,023 - - - 11.023 

Intergovernmental expendiiiires - parishes - - 350.000 - - - - - - - 350,000 

Insurance settlements - - - - - - - - - - 164.788 164.788 

Net investment sales and pitrdiases - - 4,961.068 - - - - - - - - 4.961,068 

Transfers out 23,436,357 202,867 - S.233,400 - - 12,2 27.206 - 3.434 1,065 - 43.994,329 

23,809,249 10,546,783 10,052.073 8.583.400 1.290,931 - 12,117,206 3.278.992 5.561,135 61.847.236 183,664 137,269,669 

Balances at October 31,2019 $ 953,481 S 2,306,958 $ 3,695.451 $ 13.829.031 $ 336.317 $ 23.024 S 13,867,969 $ 2.423.041 S 2.520,250 $ 3,422.271 S 353,284 $ 42,721.408 

See independent auditor's report 



Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Schedule of Investments 
For the Year Ended October 31, 2019 

Cost Fair Value Par Value 
EXTRAORDINARY MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR RESER\T: ACCOUNT 
Fixed Securities 
United States Treasiir>' Bill 

Maturity date: November 1, 2019 983,868 999,735 1,000,000 
Maturity date: November 19. 2019 4,785.469 4.796,338 4.800,000 
Maturity date: December 5, 2019 492.148 499,295 500,000 
Maturity date: December 12, 2019 2,472.809 2.495,832 2.500,000 
Maturity date: January 2,2020 1,004,402 1,012,295 1,015,000 
Maturity date: February 20,2020 1,988,175 1,990,718 2,000,000 
Maturity date: Mar ch 26,2020 992,498 993,785 1,000,000 

12,719,367 12,787,997 12,81.5,000 
Money Market 
Dreyfirs - Governmental Cash Management 3,695,451 3,695,451 3,695,451 

16,414,818 16,483,448 16,510,451 
EXCESS REVENUE ACCOUNT 
Money Market 
Dreyfus - Government Cash Management 13,129,031 13,129,031 13,129,031 

HUEY P LONG BRIDGE ACCOLIS'T 
Money Market 
Dreyfiis - Goverrirnerrt Cash Marragemerrt 262,483 262,483 262,483 

RE\T:12NE ACC012ST 
Money Market 
Dreyfiis - Govenirnent Cash Mariagernent 680,002 680,002 680,002 

DEBT SER\TCE ACCOIJNT 
Money Market 
Dreyfiis - Government Cash Management 2,423.041 2.423,041 2.423,041 

SUBORDINATE LIEN ACCOLIVT 
Money Market 
Dreyfiis - Goverrimeirtal Cash Marragemerrt 2,520,250 2,520,250 2,520,250 

DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCOUNT 
Money Market 
Dreyfiis - Govermnental Cash Management 331 331 331 

SPECIAL RE\T:NUE ACCOUNT: WHICULAR LICENSE TAX 
Money Market 
Dreyfiis - Government Cash Management 11,804,123 11,804,123 11,804,123 

SPECIAL REVENUE ACCOUINT: EXCESS VEHTCUT AR TAX 
Money Market 
Dreyfiis - Govemrneut Cash Management 2,063,846 2,063,846 2,063,846 

See independeni auditor's report 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Schedule of Investments (Continued) 
For the Year Ended October 31, 2019 

INTERNAL SER\TCE ACCOUNT: SELF INSURANCE 
Fixed Securities 
United States Treasury Bill 

Maturity date; December 5, 2019 
Maturity date: March 26, 2020 

Money Market 
Dreyfiis - Govermiienf Cash Management * 

Total 
Cash equivalents: money market accounts 

Investments, net of cash equivalents 

Cost Fair Value Par Value 
CONSTRI CTION ACCOUNT 
Fixed Income Securities 
State of Oregon 

Maturity date: November 1. 2029 500.000 500,000 500,000 
City of Green Bay Wafer System 

Maturity date: November 1. 2019 285.000 285,000 285,000 
Maturity date: November L 2020 1,420,000 1,420,724 1,420,000 

Cit>' of Madison 
Maturity date: October L 2020 1,309,815 1,300,517 1,295,000 

Elk River Independent School District: 
Maturity date; Februaiy 1, 2020 198,754 195,392 195,000 

State of Texas 
Mafiirit>' date: October 1, 2020 646,593 625,744 615.000 

Village of Mount Pleasant 
Mafiirit>' date: March 1, 2020 359,176 342,472 340.000 

Federal National Mortgage Association 
Maturity date: February 28, 2020 2,502,473 2,499,175 2,500,000 

United States Treasury Note Bond 
Maturity date: November 15, 2019 2,481,152 2,499,175 2,500,000 
Maturity date: December 15,2019 2,988,398 2,998,410 3,000,000 
Maturity date: December 31,2019 1,998,438 1,999,360 2,000,000 
Maturity date: June 15, 2020 3,738,135 3,748,088 3,750,000 
Maturity date: July 3 L 2020 3,748,975 3,750,300 3,750,000 
Maturity date: November 30, 2020 2,508,984 2,500,300 2,500,000 

United States Treasiiiy Bill 
Maturity date: November 19,2019 7,975,781 7,993,920 8,000,000 

32,661,674 32,658,576 32,650,000 
Money Market 
Dreyfiis - Governmental Cash Management 3,407.477 3.407,477 3.407,477 

36,069.151 36.066,053 36,057,477 

295.260 299,577 300,000 
295.568 298,137 300,000 
590,828 597,714 600,000 

353,284 353,284 353,284 
944,112 950,998 953,284 

86,311,188 86,383,606 86,404,319 
(40,339,319) (40,339,319) (40,339,319) 

$ 45,971,869 $ 46,044,287 $ 46,065,000 

See independeni auditor's report 



Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Schedule of Revenue from Tolls 
For the Year Ended October 31, 2019 

Month Amount 

2018 
November $ 1,980,536 
December 1,988,120 

2019 
January 1,965,512 
February 1,794,650 
Mareh 2,056,284 
April 2,014,107 
May 2,077,651 
June 1,962,877 
July 1,898,677 
August 2,032,803 
September 1,933,806 
October 2,162,524 

$ 23,867,547 

Notes 
On May 5, 1999, the Commission began collecting tolls on the North Shore only. 

On June 12, 2006, the Commission eliminated the 60-day expiration requirement on 
discounted commuter toll taas. 

See independent auditor's report 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Schedule of Northshore Traffic - Number of Crossings 
For the Year Ended October 31, 2019 

(Unaudited) 

Axles Under 7'5' " Heisht Axles Over 7'5' ' Heisht Non 

-Autouwitic 

Vehicle 

Identification 

Non-Revenue 

Automatic 

Vehicle 

Identification 

Automatic 

Vehicle 

Identification 

2 3 4 .5 or more 2 3 4 5 or more 

Revenue 

Vehicles 

(Bridge 

Veliicles) 

Recreational 

Vehicles 

Full Toll 

Vehicles 

Total 

Veliicles 

18 

November 163.966 819 567 4 2,454 361 478 294 21.015 2,860 330.430 523.248 

December 

19 

January 

176,915 683 680 9 1.666 235 330 306 20,606 3.328 - 328,216 532,974 December 

19 

January 157,571 779 908 26 1,325 244 232 409 20.577 3,540 . 351.731 537.342 

Febmary 142,801 681 775 9 L234 211 225 355 19,206 3.717 - 323,889 493,103 

March 179.128 903 1.014 22 1,463 296 327 484 20.833 3,758 - 343.533 551,761 

Apil 168,524 923 1,013 18 1.492 329 289 431 20,388 3.483 - 346,849 543,739 

May 174.506 1,011 1.021 24 1,578 265 302 381 20.948 3,637 - 354,204 557.877 

June 171,652 1.046 971 29 1.447 311 311 349 19,897 3.391 - 325,879 525,283 

July 160.332 946 928 18 1,420 256 241 351 19.950 3,458 - 322.856 510.756 

August 167.475 996 989 18 1,447 247 248 326 21.998 3,552 - 353.994 551.290 

September 159,489 979 1,026 14 1.349 226 288 328 20,694 3.311 - 336,906 524,610 

October 166.051 876 854 11 1,538 268 338 368 21.894 3,631 - 364.347 560.176 

1,988,410 10.642 10,746 202 18.413 3,249 3,609 4,382 248,006 41.666 - 4,082,834 6.412,159 

See independent auditor's report 



Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Schedule of Insurance 
For the Year Ended October 31, 2019 

(Unaudited) 

Coverage Undeiwriter 

Bridge Property Damage Ace American Ins. 

S25,000 Deductible Non-Bridge Property 
$500,000 Deductible Bridge Property 
$250,000 Deductible Earth Movement - Non-Bridge Property 
$500,000 Deductible Earth Movement - Bridge Property 
$1,000,000 Deductible Flood 
$1,000,000 Deductible Named Storm 
15 days - Loss of Revenue Waiting Period 

Policy Period Limits 

1/24/19 - 1/24/20 $100,000,000 
Per occiuxence and aggregate 

Builders Risk Coverage Ace American Ins. 
$50,0(H3 Deductible Any One Occuixence 

$1,000,000 Deductible .Any One Occmxence - Flood 
$250,000 Deductible Any One Occurrence - Earth Movement 
$50,000 Deductible Any One Occurrence - Water Damage 
$1,000,000 Deductible Any One Occurrence - Named Storm 
$50,0(H3 Deductible Any One Occuixence - Testing 

Terrorism 
$25,000 Deductible Aiy One Occurrence for 
damage and financial loss combined 

Undemxiters at 
Lloyd's London 

1/24/19 - 1/24/20 $85,894,175 

Per occuixence and aggregate 

1/24/19 - 1/24/20 $75,000,000 

Per occurrence and aggiegate 

Contractors Equipment 
Leased or Rented Mobile Equipment 

$1,000 Deductible Items Valued Under $50,000 
$2,500 Deductible Items Valued $50,000 - $99,999 
$5,0(H3 Deductible Items Valued Over $100,000 

AGCS Marine 
Insurance Co. 

11/1/18-11/1/19 $1,021,819 
Pel' occuixence and aggiegate 

Electronic Data Processing 
EDP Equipment and Software 
(Schedule on file witli Conqiany) 

$1,0(H3 Deductible; 5% Deductible Named Stoim 

AGCS Marine 
Insurance Co. 

11/1/18-11/1/19 $562,310 

Commercial Crime 
Employee Theft 
Costs Fees or Otlier Expenses - $50,000 - 25% Loss 
$5,0(H3 Deductible 

Forgery or Alteration 
$5,0{K) Deductible 

Inside tlie Premises - Theft of Money & Securities 
$1,000 Deductible 

Inside the Premises - Robbery or Burgiaiy 
$1,000 Deductible 

Outside the Premises 
$1,000 Deductible 

Hanover 
Insuiance Co. 

Hanover 
Insurance Co. 

Hanover 
Insurance Co. 

Hanover 
Insurance Co. 

Hanover 
Insurance Co. 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

$300,000 

$50,000 

$50,000 

$50,0(» 

See independeni auditor's report 
49 



Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Schedule of Insurance (Continued) 
For the Year Ended October 31, 2019 

(Unaudited) 

Coverage Undeiwriter 

Con^uter Fraud 
COSTS Fees or Otlier Expenses - 550,000 - 25% Loss 
$5,000 Deductible 

Fluids Traiisler Fraud 
$5,000 Deductible 

Money Orders & Counterfeir Money 
$5,000 Deducrible 

Destnictioii of Electronic Data or Computer Progr ams 
$1,000 Deductible 

ERISA Rider Endorsement 
$0 Deductible 

Telephone Fraud - 60 Days 
$500 Deductible 

Funds Transfer Fraud - False Pietenses 
$5,000 Deductible 

Credit Card, Debit Card or Charge Card Forgery 
$5,000 Deductible 

Faithful Perfoimance of Duty 
$5,000 Deductible 

False Pretenses 
$5,000 Deductible 

Prior Theft or Dishonesty 

Hanover 
Insurance Co. 

Hanover 
Insiuance Co. 

Hanover 
Insmaiice Co. 

Hanover 
Insiuance Co. 

Hanover 
Insur ance Co. 

Hanover 
Insiuance Co. 

Hanover 

Insiuance Co. 

Hanover 
Insurance Co. 

Hanover 
Insiuance Co. 

Hanover 
Insiuance Co. 

Hanover 
Insur ance Co. 

Policy Period 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

Limits 

$300,000 

$300,000 

550,000 

$300,000 

525,000 

$50,000 

$300,000 

5300,000 

$50,000 

525.000 

Retained Limits LiabUity 
Comprehensive General Liability 
retention applicable to each loss is $500,000 

Law Enforcement Liability 
retention applicable to each loss is $500,000 

Automobile Liability 
retention applicable to each loss is $500,000 

Errors & Ommissions Liability 
retention applicable to each loss is $500,000 

Employee Benefits Liability 
retention applicable to each loss is $500,000 

AIX Specialty 
Insurance Co. 

AIX Specialty 
Insiuance Co. 

AIX Specialty 
hrsiuance Co. 

AIX Specialty 
Insurance Co. 

AIX Specialty 
Insiuance Co. 

1/24/19 - 1/24/20 

1/24/19 - 1/24/20 

1/24/19 - 1/24/20 

$9,500,000 
Per occurrence and aggregate 

$9,500,000 
Per' occunence and aggiegate 

$9,500,000 each accident 

1/24/19-1/24/20 $9,500,000 

Per claim and aggregate 

1/24/19 - 1/24/20 $9,500,000 
Per claim and aggiegate 

See independeni auditor's report 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Schedule of Insurance (Continued) 
For the Year Ended October 31, 2019 

(Unaudited) 

Coverage Undeiwriter 

Retained Limits Liability 
Sexual Harrassment Liability 
retention applicable to each loss is $500,000 

Sexual Abuse Liability 
retention applicable to each loss is $500,000 

En'^loyment Practices 
retention applicable to each loss is $500,000 

Stand Alone Excess Liability 

Stand Alone Excess Liability 

Workers' Compensation 
Bodily Injuiy by Accident - Each Accident 
Bodily hijury by Disease - Policy Limit 
Bodily hijiiry by Accident - Each Employee 

Maritime Employers Liability 
$2,500 Deductible any one accident or ilhiess 

Boiler and Machinery 
$10,0(H3 Deductible per claim - Direct 

Police Officers Faithful Performance Bond 

Pollution Legal Liability 
$1(H3,(H30 Deductible each incident 

Cyber LiabUity 
S5.000 Deductible 

AIX Specialty 
Instirance Co. 

ADC Specialty 
Insurance Co. 

AIX Specialty 
Insuiaiice Co. 

.ADC Specialty 
Insurance Co. 

Houston 
Casualty Co. 

LWCC 

Policy Period 

1/24/19 - 1/24/20 

L/24/I9 - 1/24/20 

1/24/19-1/24/20 

1/24/19 - 1/24/20 

1/24/19 - 1/24/20 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

Limits 

Underwriters at 
Lloyd's London 

Hartford Steam 
Boiler 

Western Siii'ety 

Ironshore Specialty 

Travelers 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

11/1/18-11/1/19 

5/12/19 - 5/12/20 

12/18/18-12/18/19 

L/24/I9 - 1/24/20 

$9,500,000 
Per claim and aggregate 

$9,500,000 
Per claim and aggregate 

$9,500,000 
Per claim and aggregate 

$10,000,000 
Excess of SIOM Primary 

$10,000,000 
Excess of $20,000,000 

Statutory 
$1,000,000 
$1,000,000 
$1,000,000 

$1,000,000, any one accident 

$100,000,000 
$1,000,000 

$ 10,000 per officer 

$5,000,000 each incident 
$10,000,000 aggregate 

$1,000,000 
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Reports Required by 

Government Auditing Standards 



M INELL & ..ViARTINEZ LLC 

Certified Public Accountants 

308 Soutn Tyler Street, Sutte 2 
Covington, Louisiana 70433 

info@plnrnarcpa.com 
pjnmarcpa.com 

985-327-7311 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Commissioners 
Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Metairie, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type 
activities of the Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission, as of and for the year ended October 31, 
2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Greater New 
Orleans Expressway Commission's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
April 30, 2020. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Greater New Orleans 
Expressway Commission's internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") to determine the 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 

Msmbef or Tr^o 
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To the Board of Commissioners 
Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Page 2 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Greater New Orleans Expressway 
Commission's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

ffi 

Covington, Louisiana 
April 30, 2020 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Summary of Auditor's Results and Schedule of Findings 
For the Year Ended October 31, 2019 

A. Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

a. of auditor's report issued: 

b. Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weaknesses identified 

Significant deficiencies identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses 

c. Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted 

Unmodified 

yes 

yes 

yes 

no 

none noted 

no 

B. Findings in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

None noted. 
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Greater New Orleans Expressway Commission 
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings 
For the Year Ended October 31, 2019 

A. Findings in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

None noted. 
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